
Table of Contents

 
Agenda 2
Mid-Valley Disposal 1st and 2nd Quarter Recycling Updates

Mid Valley Newsletter 5
Minutes

September 2, 2015 6
Payroll

Payroll/Overtime Report 9
Warrants

Accounts Payable 13
Water Conservation Leak Notification Report

Leak Notification Report 23
Monthly Investment Report Ending August 31, 2015

Investment Reports 28
Public Hearing Ordinance Adding Section 17.94 to Title 17 of
the Kerman Municipal Code To Comply with AB 2188
Regarding Expedited Permit Processing For Small Residential
Roof Top Solar Systems

Staff Report - Ordinance Rooftop Solar 30
Resolution Approving Agreements for Utility Service for 322 S.
Goldenrod Avenue and 348 S. Goldenrod Avenue

Staff Report - Corneliuz & Trevino 38
Addition of the Reconstruction of Manor Drive to the California
Avenue Reconstruction Project

Staff Report - Manor Drive 48

1



AGENDA 
KERMAN CITY COUNCIL  

REGULAR MEETING 
Kerman City Hall 

850 S. Madera Avenue 
Wednesday, September 16, 2015 

6:30 PM 
 
 
 

AGENDA PACKET AVAILABLE FOR  
REVIEW 72 HOURS PRIOR TO  

THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING AT  
THE CITY CLERK’S OFFICE AND  

ON THE CITY WEBSITE 
ITEMS RECEIVED AT THE 

MEETING WILL BE AVAILABLE  
FOR REVIEW AT THE CITY  

CLERK’S OFFICE  

Stephen B. Hill – Mayor 
Gary Yep – Mayor Pro Tem 
Rhonda Armstrong – Council Member 
Nathan Fox – Council Member 
Bill Nijjer – Council Member 

ALL MEETING ATTENDEES ARE ADVISED THAT ALL PAGERS, CELLULAR TELEPHONES AND ANY OTHER 
COMMUNICATION DEVICES SHOULD BE POWERED OFF UPON ENTERING THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 

AS THESE DEVICES INTERFERE WITH OUR AUDIO EQUIPMENT. 
 

OPENING CEREMONIES 
 

• Welcome – Mayor  
• Call to Order 
• Roll Call 
• Invocation 

At this time the Council wishes to provide anyone an opportunity to give a brief invocation or 
inspirational thought. In accordance with law, we would request this opportunity not be used to 
recruit converts, to advance anyone, or to disparage any other faith or belief. If no one steps 
forward, we will observe a moment of silence so that we may all focus our thoughts on how best 
to serve our community. 

 

• Pledge of Allegiance – City Clerk  
 

AGENDA APPROVAL/ADDITIONS/DELETIONS 
 

To accommodate members of the public or convenience in the order of presentation, items on 
the agenda may not be presented or acted upon in the order listed. 

 

1. PRESENTATIONS/CEREMONIAL MATTERS 
 

A. Mid-Valley Disposal 1st and 2nd Quarter Recycling Updates (MR) 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Mid Valley Newsletter  

 
REQUEST TO ADDRESS COUNCIL 

 
This portion of the meeting is reserved for members of the public to address the Council on items 
of interest that are not on the Agenda and are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the 
Council. Speakers shall be limited to three minutes. It is requested that no comments be made 
during this period on items on the Agenda. Members of the public wishing to address the Council 
on items on the Agenda should notify the Mayor when that Agenda item is called, and the 
Mayor will recognize your discussion at that time. It should be noted that the Council is 
prohibited by law from taking any action on matters discussed that are not on the Agenda. 
Speakers are asked to please use the microphone, and provide their name and address. 

 

2



2. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

Matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be enacted by one 
motion and one vote. There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, 
a member of the audience or a Council Member may request an item be removed from the 
Consent Calendar and it will be considered separately. 

 

A. SUBJECT: Minutes 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve minutes as presented. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: September 2, 2015   
 

B. SUBJECT: Payroll 
 

Payroll Report: August 16, 2015 - August 29, 2015: $129,924.64; Retro Pay: $377.35; 
Overtime: $7,255.10; Standby: $1,328.36; Comp Time Earned: 12.00; Uniform Pay: 
$6,075.00.      
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve payroll as presented. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Payroll/Overtime Report 
 

C. SUBJECT: Warrants  
 

1.  Nos. 7091-7160: $562,866.75  
2.  Excepting - Sebastian: 7133 - $3,149.42      
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve warrants and electronic bank transfers as 
presented. (Pursuant to Government Code 37208) 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Accounts Payable 
 

D. SUBJECT: Water Conservation Leak Notification Report (KM) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Informational only.    
 
ATTACHMENTS: Leak Notification Report     
 

E. SUBJECT: Monthly Investment Report Ending August 31, 2015 (TJ) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council accept the Monthly Investment Report as presented     
 
ATTACHMENTS: Investment Reports     
 

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
 None 

  

3



 
A. SUBJECT: Public Hearing Ordinance Adding Section 17.94 to Title 17 of the Kerman 

Municipal Code To Comply with AB 2188 Regarding Expedited Permit Processing for 
Small Residential Roof Top Solar Systems (OP) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council conduct a public hearing, receive public testimony, and by 
motion adopt Ordinance adding section 17.94 to Title 17 of the Kerman Municipal Code 
to comply with AB 2188 regarding expedited permitting procedures for small residential 
roof top solar. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - Ordinance Rooftop Solar 
 

4. DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
 

A. SUBJECT: Resolution Approving Agreements for Utility Service for 322 S. Goldenrod 
Avenue and 348 S. Goldenrod Avenue (JJ) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt the resolution approving the Agreements 
for Utility Service for David and Arlene Corneliuz at 322 S. Goldenrod Avenue and Reggie 
and Stella Trevino at 348 S. Goldenrod Avenue. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - Corneliuz & Trevino   
 

B. SUBJECT: Addition of the Reconstruction of Manor Drive to the California Avenue 
Reconstruction Project (JJ) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution approving a change order to 
add the reconstruction of Manor Drive to the scope of the California Avenue 
Reconstruction Project and authorize the Public Works Director to sign the change 
order. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - Manor Drive   
 

5. CITY MANAGER/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 
 

6. MAYOR/COUNCIL REPORTS 
 

7. CLOSED SESSION 
 

A. Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957 - Public Employee Appointment/Employment 
Title: City Manager 

 

COUNCIL RECONVENE FROM CLOSED SESSION & REPORT ANY ACTION TAKEN 
 

8. ADJOURNMENT 

 
In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act (ADA), if you need special assistance to 
participate at this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (559) 846-9380. Notification of 48 hours 
prior to the meeting will enable the City Clerk to make reasonable arrangement to ensure accessibility 
to this meeting. Pursuant to the ADA, the meeting room is accessible to the physically handicapped. 

 

4



5



 
MINUTES 

KERMAN CITY COUNCIL  
REGULAR MEETING 

Kerman City Hall 
850 S. Madera Avenue 

Wednesday, September 2, 2015 
6:30 PM 

 
 
 

Stephen B. Hill – Mayor 
Gary Yep – Mayor Pro Tem 
Rhonda Armstrong – Council Member 
Nathan Fox – Council Member 
Bill Nijjer – Council Member 

Present: Mayor Hill (SH) Rhonda Armstrong (RA) Gary Yep (GY), Fox (NF), Nijjer (BN) 
Absent: None 
Also Present: City Attorney Cantú, Chief of Police, Community Services Director, 
Finance Director, Public Works Director, City Engineer 

Voting: Yes, No, 
Absent (Abstain if 
needed) 

OPENING CEREMONIES  

• Welcome – Mayor   

• Call to Order 6:30 p.m. 

• Roll Call All present except BN 

• Invocation SH 

• Pledge of Allegiance – City Clerk  Performed 

AGENDA APPROVAL/ADDITIONS/DELETIONS Approved GY/RA to 
move 4A/4B after 1A 
(4-0-1) 
6:34 p.m. BN arrived 
Approved agenda 
w/changes GY/RA  
(5-0-0) 
 

1. PRESENTATIONS/CEREMONIAL MATTERS 

A. Katey's Kids Park Project Update (PG) Presented 

ITEMS 4A and 4B MOVED UP ON AGENDA  

A. SUBJECT: Presentation from Kerman Unified School District on Building 
Projects and Water Conservation (MR) 

Presented 

RECOMMENDATION: Council receive presentation.  

B. SUBJECT: Amending Resolution No. 14-47 Relating to Municipal Utility 
Guidelines During Drought Emergency to Allow Exemption for Kerman Unified 
School District School Sports and Recreation Fields to Provide for the Public 
Health and Safety of Users (JK) 

Approved SH/NF not 
to exceed 5 days a 
week; expiration date 
December 31, 2015 
(5-0-0) 

RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution amending 
Resolution No. 14-47 Relating to Municipal Utility Guidelines During Drought 
Emergency to allow exemption for Kerman Unified School District school 
sports and recreation fields to provide for the public health and safety of 
users. 

Res 15-50 

6



REQUEST TO ADDRESS COUNCIL 
None 

2. CONSENT CALENDAR Approved NF/BN 
excepting 7032 (5-0-0) 

A. SUBJECT: Minutes  

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve minutes as presented.  

B. SUBJECT: Payroll  

Payroll Report: August 2, 2015 - August 15, 2015: $130,370.34; Retro Pay: 
624.12; Other: $7,813.93; Overtime: $6,093.59; Standby: $1,381.01; Comp 
Time Earned: 63.75      

 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve payroll as presented.  

C. SUBJECT: Warrants - 1.  Nos 7011-7090:  $244,568.66 2.  Excepting - Sebastian 
7032 $150.00 

Approved NF/GY  
(4-0-1) RA (employee) 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve warrants and electronic bank transfers 
as presented. (Pursuant to Government Code 37208) 

 

D. SUBJECT: Agreement for Labor Compliance Services for the Residential Water 
Meter Project (JJ) 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution approving 
agreement for labor compliance services with Richard Perez dba Labor 
Consultants of California for the Residential Water Meter Project.     

Res 15-51 

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS None 

4. DEPARTMENT REPORTS  

ITEMS 4A and 4B MOVED UP ON AGENDA  

C. SUBJECT: Letter of Request from Robert D. Epperson, Kerman Planning 
Commission Chairman Regarding Commissioner Compensation (MR) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council review letter of request and direct staff 
accordingly. 

Staff directed to 
survey other cities for 
PC and CC 
compensation and 
bring back to cc. 
 

D. SUBJECT: Resolution Approving a Lieutenant's Position and Amending the 
Public Safety Employee Salary Scale to Include the Rank of Lieutenant (JKB) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution approving a 
Lieutenant’s position and amending the Public Safety Employee Salary Scale 
to include the rank of Lieutenant. 

Approved Lieutenant’s 
position striking 
section 2 and bring 
back salary scale at 
next meeting. NF/RA 
(5-0-0) 
 
Res 15-52 

5. CITY MANAGER/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 
 
 
 

 

7



6. MAYOR/COUNCIL REPORTS  

A. Kerman Harvest Festival – September 17-20  

7. CLOSED SESSION 9:01 p.m. GY recused 
due to being an 
applicant and left 
meeting. 
 
 

A. Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957 - Public Employee 
Appointment/Employment Title: City Manager 

COUNCIL RECONVENE FROM CLOSED SESSION & REPORT ANY ACTION TAKEN 10:33 p.m. 
No reportable action 

8. ADJOURNMENT 10:34 p.m. Approved 
BN/RA (4-0-1) GY 

 
 

 

MINUTES CERTIFICATION 

 
I,   MARCI REYES, City Clerk for the City of Kerman, do hereby declare under penalty of perjury that the above 
Minutes are a true depiction of all actions taken at the City Council meeting held on the first date above 
written at Kerman City Hall, 850 S. Madera Ave, Kerman, CA. 

         Date: September 3, 2015 
 
         ____________________ 
         Marci Reyes 
         City Clerk 
 

 

8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



Meter Reading 8/27/15 Leak Notice

House # Street Name Meter Serial # Present Read Notice

668 16TH CT 9252856 1515 1 1st -60

748 S 16TH ST 9253196 1531 1 2nd - 37

679 S 18TH ST 9253117 1695 1 3rd - 24

15475 W ASHLI AVE 9419911 662 1 30 Day -33

14136 W B ST 9252844 2457 1 Pndg Fine - 38

14855 W B ST 9419899 2012 1 Total 192

16025 W BOTELHO AVE 9369272 1670 1

16172 W BOTELHO AVE 9369265 962 1

547 BURGUNDY ST 9369406 1635 1

14286 W C ST 9252892 960 1

14301 W C ST 9252905 1112 1

15807 W C ST 9369489 1272 1

14477 W CALIFORNIA A 10427793 637 1

15668 W CALIFORNIA A 9252750 2612 1

14336 W CHAD CT 9252868 614 1

14393 W CHAD CT 9253103 1213 1

14448 W CHARDONAY AV 9252826 1039 1

14585 W CHARDONAY AV 9253221 1486 1

14599 W CHARDONAY AV 9253342 1569 1

16160 CYNDI AVE 9252448 1466 1

15780 W D ST 9369455 1292 1

15676 W DAVID AVE 9252694 1064 1

14320 W E ST 9252932 2460 1

699 S GOLDENROD AVE 9253148 2188 1

549 GURDWARA AVE 9253019 1418 1

811 S JOSEPH AVE 9252744 1541 1

14271 W KEARNEY BLVD 9369380 2642 1

15630 W KEARNEY BLVD 9252648 2630 1

15790 W KEARNEY BLVD 9253281 1504 1

798 S KENNETH AVE 9252609 1281 1

883 S KENNETH AVE 9369307 1482 1

541 KOLEEN CT 9252642 2104 1

550 KOLEEN CT 9252496 1085 1

367 S LUM AVE 9252689 1238 1

446 S MANOR DR 9419997 1215 1

565 MCKENNA CT 9252967 1575 1

215 S MERLOT AVE 9252846 1528 1

277 S MICHELLE AVE 9252669 2164 1

512 S MICHELLE AVE 9252458 1302 1

16176 W NATALIE AVE 9369289 1313 1

205 S OLYMPIC ST 9253089 1007 1

273 S OLYMPIC ST 9253238 1993 1

14337 W PALM AVE 9253029 1150 1

291 S PARK AVE 9419985 1057 1

763 S PARK AVE 9369431 1490 1

Page 1 of 5
23



Meter Reading 8/27/15 Leak Notice

House # Street Name Meter Serial # Present Read Notice

14557 W SAN JOAQUIN 9253335 1932 1

15811 W SAN JOAQUIN 9369320 1632 1

462 SHEPHERD CT 9252688 1064 1

481 SHEPHERD CT 9252657 1383 1

14136 W SHERI ST 9252918 2309 1

14287 W SHERI ST 9252887 2128 1

14290 W SHERI ST 9253125 1128 1

14298 W SHERI ST 9252888 1237 1

585 S SISKIYOU AVE 9367177 240 1

14543 W STANISLAUS A 9253202 813 1

14581 W STANISLAUS A 9149587 1782 1

15892 W STANISLAUS A 9252457 1463 1

349 S THOMAS AVE 9252731 1416 1

545 WALNUT CT 9419994 1246 1

15684 WOOTEN CT 9252745 1006 1

422 S 2ND ST 9419891 1453 2

699 S 16TH ST 9252929 2025 2

648 S 17TH CT 9253036 2022 2

16075 W ALLYSON AVE 9369234 515 2

102 S ALMOND AVE 9369173 1877 2

372 S ALMOND AVE 9252446 2261 2

16010 W BOTELHO AVE 9369274 2017 2

440 BOYD AVE 9252515 1133 2

16036 W BRIAN AVE 9252600 1823 2

392 BURGUNDY ST 9253152 1495 2

377 CARMEL DR 9252555 1156 2

16152 CYNDI AVE 9252475 834 2

15906 W D ST 9369464 1630 2

325 S DEL NORTE AVE 9252653 1288 2

14082 W E ST 9253149 1592 2

15707 W E ST 9369376 2233 2

15823 W E ST 9419947 1761 2

16167 W EL MAR AVE 9252635 2257 2

14655 W F ST 11315214 2270 2

545 S GOLDENROD AVE 9253143 2412 2

564 KAREN AVE 9252980 1496 2

14612 W KEARNEY BLVD 10422025 2599 2

15797 W KEARNEY BLVD 9419886 903 2

15861 W KEARNEY BLVD 9419885 1490 2

16085 W KEARNEY BLVD 9369279 235 2

492 S MADERA AVE 9633035 85 2

569 MCKENNA CT 9252970 1497 2

341 S MERLOT AVE 9419607 729 2

551 S MICHELLE AVE 9252407 1052 2

15891 W MIDDLETON AV 9252424 1491 2

Page 2 of 5
24



Meter Reading 8/27/15 Leak Notice

House # Street Name Meter Serial # Present Read Notice

14295 W SHERI ST 9253093 2399 2

14319 W SHERI ST 9252913 789 2

276 S SISKIYOU AVE 9369500 1241 2

14475 W SUNSET AVE 9252801 1435 2

571 S SUSAN AVE 9253313 1138 2

602 S SUSAN AVE 9252528 2203 2

14058 W TAYLOR ST 9252900 1116 2

421 S 3RD ST 10428496 199 3

751 S ALMOND AVE 9369545 1209 3

14113 W B ST 9253102 1992 3

14329 W B ST 9419870 973 3

14352 W CHAD CT 9253104 1350 3

15729 W E ST 9369375 1239 3

14330 W G ST 9252982 1301 3

14450 W G ST 9252923 1285 3

264 S JOSEPH AVE 9252737 2385 3

14615 W KEARNEY BLVD 9419874 1229 3

763 S KENNETH AVE 9252568 1889 3

1705 S MADERA AVE 12294831 68 3

579 MCKENNA CT 9252969 1646 3

332 S MERLOT AVE 9253070 1732 3

15620 W MIDDLETON AV 9252545 1198 3

15905 W MONTEREY LN 9252384 940 3

16152 W NATALIE AVE 9369285 1019 3

15868 ORCHARD WAY 9419932 958 3

15932 ORCHARD WAY 9252412 1847 3

14601 W SAN JOAQUIN 9369411 1556 3

15877 W SAN JOAQUIN 9369330 1271 3

16169 W SAN JOAQUIN 9252646 1975 3

14294 W SHERI ST 9252889 1668 3

565 WALNUT CT 9419955 1262 3

151 S 1ST ST 10247846 211 30 Day

675 S 16TH ST 9252939 1604 30 Day

658 S 17TH CT 9369388 751 30 Day

689 S 17TH CT 9252835 2484 30 Day

516 S 18TH ST 9253168 2518 30 Day

412 S ALMOND AVE 9252471 1299 30 Day

846 S ALMOND AVE 9369534 1349 30 Day

14304 W B ST 9149598 1171 30 Day

529 BURGUNDY ST 9253027 1440 30 Day

14258 W C ST 9253174 1361 30 Day

14591 W CHARDONAY AV 9253227 1846 30 Day

15617 W E ST 9369379 1890 30 Day

14576 W EL MAR AVE 9253068 1404 30 Day

14110 W F ST 9252803 2379 30 Day

Page 3 of 5
25



Meter Reading 8/27/15 Leak Notice

House # Street Name Meter Serial # Present Read Notice

14084 W G ST 9252811 1854 30 Day

445 S GOLDENROD AVE 11013859 2232 30 Day

798 S JOSEPH AVE 9252712 825 30 Day

14918 W KEARNEY BLVD 10427720 907 30 Day

15765 W KEARNEY BLVD 9252631 2093 30 Day

582 S KENNETH AVE 9252483 1644 30 Day

373 S LUM AVE 9252452 1942 30 Day

11409 ROAD 26 1/2 10391329 1229 30 Day

588 MCKENNA CT 9252968 1766 30 Day

265 S MERLOT AVE 9253099 1701 30 Day

277 S MERLOT AVE 9253072 1789 30 Day

287 S MERLOT AVE 9253071 666 30 Day

561 S MICHELLE AVE 9252414 1348 30 Day

16168 W NATALIE AVE 9369287 1140 30 Day

14562 W STANISLAUS A 9419876 2936 30 Day

14604 W SUNSET AVE 9253346 2623 30 Day

15688 W SUNSET AVE 9252596 2190 30 Day

14311 W TAYLOR ST 9252859 2999 30 Day

547 WALNUT CT 9419995 894 30 Day

467 S 6TH ST 10427718 1111 Pnd 30

669 S 18TH ST 9253120 1449 Pnd 30

121 S ALMOND AVE 9369172 1746 Pnd 30

569 S ALMOND CT 9419968 1478 Pnd 30

578 S ALMOND CT 9369144 2338 Pnd 30

15912 W BOTELHO AVE 9419894 1037 Pnd 30

410 BOYD AVE 9252615 1274 Pnd 30

16002 W BRIAN AVE 9149655 1731 Pnd 30

520 BURGUNDY ST 9252996 2347 Pnd 30

14285 W C ST 9369404 1080 Pnd 30

14475 W CHARDONAY AV 9253333 1359 Pnd 30

14058 W E ST 9253145 1925 Pnd 30

15777 W E ST 9419864 1329 Pnd 30

15934 W E ST 9419862 1759 Pnd 30

14558 W EL MAR AVE 9253218 2402 Pnd 30

14307 W F ST 9252832 1912 Pnd 30

14339 W F ST 9369406 964 Pnd 30

14266 W G ST 9252979 2478 Pnd 30

14415 W KEARNEY BLVD 9419907 3184 Pnd 30

15652 W KEARNEY BLVD 9252770 2888 Pnd 30

561 KOLEEN CT 9419844 1685 Pnd 30

431 S LUM AVE 9252453 2600 Pnd 30

377 S MERLOT AVE 9253314 1418 Pnd 30

15441 W MIDDLETON AV 9419983 2278 Pnd 30

15838 W MIDDLETON AV 9252778 3011 Pnd 30

15768 ORCHARD WAY 9419925 841 Pnd 30

Page 4 of 5
26



Meter Reading 8/27/15 Leak Notice

House # Street Name Meter Serial # Present Read Notice

16141 W SAN JOAQUIN 9252560 879 Pnd 30

14160 W SHERI ST 9252897 1656 Pnd 30

791 S SHERI WAY 9253207 2353 Pnd 30

14380 W STANISLAUS A 9252847 1294 Pnd 30

14529 W STANISLAUS A 9253337 1694 Pnd 30

15941 W STANISLAUS A 9252678 1583 Pnd 30

15406 W SUNSET AVE 9419976 1113 Pnd 30

15448 W SUNSET AVE 9419878 1599 Pnd 30

15703 W SUNSET AVE 9252595 1987 Pnd 30

562 S SUSAN AVE 9253316 2012 Pnd 30

568 WALNUT CT 9416956 1153 Pnd 30

14061 W WHITESBRIDGE 13019908 1935 Pnd 30

1st -60

2nd - 37

3rd - 24

30 Day -33

Pndg Fine - 38

Total - 192

Page 5 of 5
27



CITY OF KERMAN
CD/Securities Portfolio
As of August 31, 2015 6/30/2015 6/30/2016 FY to Date

Interest Rate/ Opening Maturity Book Additions/ Book Interest 
Institution Account Number Trans. Date Date Date Balance (Deletions) Cashed In Balance Fair Value Paid
CD's:

Mercantile Bank of Michigan 615-030525-245 2.00% 1/21/11 7/21/15 150,000.00             (150,000.00)     -                   -                         1,487.67          

GE Money Bank 615-030525-245 1.50% 8/5/11 8/5/15 50,000.00               (50,000.00)      -                   -                         371.92             

Sallie Mae Bank 615-030525-245 1.10% 8/8/12 8/10/15 97,000.00               (97,000.00)      -                   534.96             

Safra National Bank 615-030525-245 0.70% 8/15/13 8/17/15 100,000.00             (100,000.00)     -                   -                         350.96             

Discover Bank Greenwood 615-030525-245 1.55% 9/14/11 9/14/15 99,000.00               99,000.00        99,041.58               -                  

State Bank of India 615-030525-245 2.25% 9/29/10 9/29/15 100,000.00             100,000.00       100,150.00             -                  

Lake City Bank 615-030525-245 0.55% 1/29/14 1/29/16 95,000.00               95,000.00        95,084.55               87.33              

Discover Bank Greenwood 615-030525-245 1.35% 2/1/12 2/1/16 51,000.00               51,000.00        51,214.71               341.42             

Goldman Sachs Bank 615-030525-245 1.40% 2/1/12 2/1/16 48,000.00               48,000.00        48,211.68               333.24             

Synovus Bank 615-030525-245 0.50% 3/17/14 3/17/16 100,000.00             100,000.00       100,172.00             -                  

State Bank of India 615-030525-245 2.00% 8/12/11 8/12/16 47,000.00               47,000.00        47,631.68               466.14             

Medallion Bank 615-030525-245 1.00% 8/19/13 8/19/16 100,000.00             100,000.00       100,401.00             495.89             

Goldman Sachs Bank USA 615-030525-245 1.85% 8/31/11 8/31/16 200,000.00             200,000.00       202,470.00             1,865.21          

Ally Bank 615-030525-245 0.95% 10/2/14 10/11/16 100,000.00             100,000.00       100,309.00             -                  

Capital One Bank Glen Allen VA 615-030525-245 1.00% 11/12/14 11/14/16 96,000.00               96,000.00        96,211.20               -                  

Firstbank of Puerto Rico 6-15-030525-245 1.10% 1/25/13 1/25/17 53,000.00               53,000.00        53,277.19               97.44              

Firstbank of Puerto Rico 615-030525-245 0.90% 3/1/13 3/1/17 196,000.00             196,000.00       196,756.56             294.81             

Cit Salt Lake City UT 615-030525-245 0.90% 3/27/13 3/27/17 98,000.00               98,000.00        98,392.00               -                  

Ge Capital Bank 615-030525-245 1.10% 5/8/14 5/16/17 248,000.00             248,000.00       248,312.48             -                  

Cap One NA Mclean VA 615-030525-245 1.15% 7/22/15 7/24/17 150,000.00      150,000.00       149,584.50             -                  

American Express Centurion Bank 615-030525-245 1.70% 7/26/12 7/26/17 98,000.00               98,000.00        99,024.10               826.15             

Whitney Bank Gulfport MS 615-030525-245 1.20% 8/12/15 8/14/17 -                          50,000.00        50,000.00        49,949.00               

Sallie Mae Bank 615-030525-245 1.70% 8/22/12 8/22/17 150,000.00             150,000.00       151,821.00             1,264.52          

1st Merchants 615-030525-245 1.00% 3/21/14 9/21/17 96,000.00               96,000.00        96,234.24               -                  

Third Federal Cleveland OH 615-030525-245 1.15% 2/21/14 11/21/17 99,000.00               99,000.00        99,318.78               564.57             

Capital One Bank Glen Allen VA 615-030525-245 1.25% 1/22/15 1/22/18 100,000.00             100,000.00       99,654.00               619.86             

Bank of Baroda 615-030525-245 1.25% 3/8/13 3/8/18 248,000.00             248,000.00       247,637.92             -                  

Wells Fargo Bank in SD 615-030525-245 1.00% 3/28/13 3/29/18 248,000.00             248,000.00       247,905.76             -                  

Discover Greenwood 615-030525-245 1.15% 4/8/15 4/9/18 98,000.00               98,000.00        97,120.94               -                  

Everbank CD Jacksonville FL 615-030525-245 1.10% 4/15/15 4/13/18 150,000.00             150,000.00       148,437.00             -                  

Rollstone Bank Fitchburg MA 615-030525-245 1.10% 4/15/15 4/16/18 248,000.00             248,000.00       245,381.12             -                  

American Express Centurion Bank 615-030525-245 1.15% 5/16/13 5/16/18 98,000.00               98,000.00        97,445.32               -                  

Compass Bank 615-030525-245 1.70% 7/31/13 7/31/18 97,000.00               97,000.00        97,776.97               817.72             

American Express Salt Lake City Ut 615-030525-245 1.25% 8/14/14 8/14/18 98,000.00               98,000.00        97,670.72               777.56             

Third Federal Cleveland OH 615-030525-245 1.55% 3/26/15 3/26/19 98,000.00               98,000.00        97,627.60               -                  

Barclays Bank 615-030525-245 1.90% 4/15/14 4/15/19 248,000.00             248,000.00       248,545.60             -                  

BMW Salt Lake City UT 615-030525-245 1.95% 6/20/14 6/20/19 200,000.00             200,000.00       199,992.00             -                  

ST Bank of India CD Chicago IL 615-030525-245 2.15% 8/18/15 8/19/19 100,000.00      100,000.00       100,188.00             

Cit Salt Lake City UT 615-030525-245 2.15% 11/13/14 11/13/19 100,000.00             100,000.00       100,196.00             -                  

Synchrony Draper UT 615-030525-245 1.95% 3/13/15 3/13/20 150,000.00             150,000.00       148,753.50             -                  

JP Morgan Chase Bank 615-030525-245 2.10% 3/31/15 3/31/20 98,000.00               98,000.00        97,562.92               -                  

Comenity Bank Jumbo Formerly World Finl Network Bank DE615-030525-245 2.10% 6/10/15 6/10/20 200,000.00             200,000.00       200,000.00             609.86             

Amex Centurion Salt Lake City Ut 615-030525-245 2.30% 6/24/15 6/24/20 52,000.00               52,000.00        51,405.12               -                  

Capital One Bank Glen Allen VA 615-030525-245 2.20% 6/24/15 6/24/20 46,000.00               46,000.00        45,472.38               -                  28



CITY OF KERMAN
CD/Securities Portfolio
As of August 31, 2015 6/30/2015 6/30/2016 FY to Date

Interest Rate/ Opening Maturity Book Additions/ Book Interest 
Institution Account Number Trans. Date Date Date Balance (Deletions) Cashed In Balance Fair Value Paid

Capital One NA Mclean VA 615-030525-245 2.30% 8/12/15 8/12/20 -                          97,000.00        97,000.00        97,055.29               

Average Rate 1.49%
Subtotal - CD's 5,048,000.00          -                  -                       5,048,000.00    5,049,395.41          12,207.23        

Pacific Mercantile Bank 80900343 0.95% 1/22/08 1/22/15 99,000.00               99,000.00        99,000.00               107.57             

Local Agency Investment Fund
2,000,000.00   2,000,000.00    

Subtotal - LAIF -                          2,000,000.00   -                       2,000,000.00    -                         -                  

Central Valley Comm Bank CD

1.34 6/8/12 6/8/17 200,000.00             200,000.00       200,000.00             227.61             

Total CD and Local Agency Investments 5,347,000.00          2,000,000.00   -                       7,347,000.00    5,348,395.41          12,542.41        

Chandler Asset Management
Beginning Balance -                          -                   

(City of Kerman) 152,606.85             152,606.85       152,606.85             -                  
Interest -                   

-                   -                  
Chandler Ending Balance Total Chandler Investments 152,606.85             -                  -                       152,606.85       152,606.85             -                  

Central Valley Money Market Acct 015030960
Beginning Balance 3,606,160.43          3,606,160.43    
Interest 7/31/15 320.39             320.39             320.39             

8/31/15 103.27             103.27             103.27             
-                   -                  

Transfers In/(Out) 7/7/15 (50,000.00)      (50,000.00)       
7/10/15 (50,000.00)      (50,000.00)       
7/14/15 (100,000.00)     (100,000.00)     
7/23/15 (150,000.00)     (150,000.00)     

To LAIF 7/28/15 (2,000,000.00)  (2,000,000.00)  
-                   
-                   
-                   
-                   

3,606,160.43          (2,349,576.34)  -                       1,256,584.09    1,256,584.09          423.66             

Subtotal All City Investments 5,248,000.00          -                  -                       5,248,000.00    5,249,395.41          12,434.84        

Total Investments 5,499,606.85          2,000,000.00   -                       7,499,606.85    5,501,002.26          12,542.41        
Market Value Adjustment (1,998,604.59)         

2,000,000.00    
2,000,000.00    

-                   

29



    
City of Kerman 

A Place Where “Community Comes First” 
  

   

MAYOR                         MAYOR PRO-TEM 
Stephen B. Hill               Gary K. Yep 

COUNCIL MEMBER     COUNCIL MEMBER       COUNCIL MEMBER    
Rhonda Armstrong         Nathan Fox                      Bill Nijjer 

DEPARTMENT: PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MEETING DATE: SEPTEMBER 16, 2015 

   
To: Mayor and Council 
From: Olivia Pimentel, Planning Technician 
Subject: Public Hearing Ordinance Adding Section 17.94 to Title 17 of the Kerman Municipal Code To 

Comply with AB 2188 Regarding Expedited Permit Processing For Small Residential Roof Top 
Solar Systems 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
Council conduct a public hearing, receive public testimony, and by motion adopt Ordinance adding section 
17.94 to Title 17 of the Kerman Municipal Code to comply with AB 2188 regarding expedited permitting 
procedures for small residential roof top solar. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
 
On August 19, 2015, staff introduced a proposed amendment to the City Council that was recommended by 
the Planning Commission by way of a resolution of intent. The Planning Commission held a public hearing on 
August 10, 2015 and approved said resolution. The proposed zoning ordinance amendment to the Kerman 
City Council is based on provisions of Senate Bill AB 2188 that requires that on or before September 30, 2015, 
every city, county or city and county must adopt an ordinance that creates an expedited, streamlined permitting 
process for small residential roof top solar energy systems. The action tonight will secure compliance with the 
state law deadline. 
 
Section 65850.5(a) of the California Government Code provides that it is the policy of the State to promote and 
encourage the installation and use of solar energy systems by limiting obstacles to their use and by minimizing 
the permitting costs of such systems. In furtherance of that objective, Section 65850.5(g)(1) of the California 
Government Code requires that, on or before September 30, 2015, every city, county, or city and county must 
adopt an ordinance that creates an expedited, streamlined permitting process for small residential rooftop solar 
energy systems. 
 
The City currently expedites the review of such applications which meets the required intent of AB 2188 by 
reviewing and issuing applications (Our current plans are processed for residential solar projects in a very short 
time, normally ten (10) days for processing and permitting, etc.). Council member Armstrong inquired about 
permitting process for Commercial and Industrial projects, staff discussed with Building Inspector and his 
response was that all projects are actually processed as quickly as possible; however, building code 
requirements for commercial and industrial are different and is the primary reason why this ordinance did not 
include commercial or industrial projects. 
 
The Solar Guidebook states “for eligible projects, plan review and permit issuance are completed “over the 
counter” for walk-in applications or electronic submittals, or automatically through online software. If over-the-

30



City Council Staff Report   Page 2 of 8 
AB 2188, Adopt Ordinance to Expedite Residential Solar Permitting Procedures  
 

 

counter approvals is not offered, a maximum timeframe of 1-3 days in which to review the permit application is 
provided.” The key language to consider here is “review and application”. It does not say approve the plans. 
Also, note that these are guidelines and not law. The City should be cautious not to state a time frame because 
it is not a requirement.  
 
The City, however, needs to adopt the ordinance mandated by Section 65850.5(g)(1). The attached ordinance 
is intended to satisfy that requirement. The ordinance codifies the requirements of Section 65850.5(g)(1), such 
as accepting and approving applications electronically, directing the City’s Building Official to develop a 
checklist of all requirements with which small rooftop solar energy systems shall comply to be eligible for 
expedited review, and authorizing the Building Official to administratively approve such applications. 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION 
 
On August 10, 2015, the Kerman Planning Commission conducted a public hearing and adopted Resolution 
No. 15-03, Resolution of Intent to Recommend Adoption of Ordinance Amending Title 17 of the Kerman 
Municipal Ordinance Relating to Expedited Permitting Procedures for Small Residential Roof Top Solar 
Systems. 
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES 
 
The City of Kerman’s Zoning Ordinance must be in compliance with provisions of AB 2188 relating to expedited 
permitting procedures for small residential roof top solar systems on or before September 30, 2015. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
There is no anticipated fiscal impact, as the costs would be recovered through existing building permit fees.  
 
DISCUSSION 
 
In order to meet the September 30, 2015 deadline and all requirements for public hearing notices, the City 
Planning Commission scheduled a special meeting for a public hearing on August 10, 2015 and approved a 
Resolution of Intent to Recommend Adoption of Ordinance Amending Title 17 of the Kerman Municipal 
Ordinance Relating to Expedited Permitting Procedures For Small Residential Roof Top Solar Systems. 
 
Staff recommends that the Council conduct a public hearing, receive public testimony, and by motion adopt 
Ordinance adding 17.94 to Title 17 of the Kerman Municipal Ordinance regarding expedited permit process for 
small residential roof top solar systems. 
 
This would meet the September 30, 2015 deadline. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
A public hearing notice on the proposed ordinance was published in the Kerman News for the September 16, 
2015 Council meeting 
 
Attachments: 
 

A. Ordinance  
B. Streamline Permitting Checklist 

31



City Council Staff Report   Page 3 of 8 
AB 2188, Adopt Ordinance to Expedite Residential Solar Permitting Procedures  
 

 

Attachment ‘A’ 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 15-__ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN ADDING 17.94 TO 
TITLE 17 OF THE KERMAN MUNICIPAL CODE TO COMPLY WITH AB 2188 

REGARDING EXPEDITED PERMIT PROCESS FOR SMALL RESIDENTIAL ROOFTOP 
SOLAR SYSTEMS 

 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1.  Chapter 17.94 is added to Title 17 of the Kerman Municipal Code to read as follows: 

EXPEDITED PERMIT PROCESS FOR SMALL  
RESIDENTIAL ROOFTOP SOLAR SYSTEMS 

 
Sections: 
17.94.010  Purpose and intent. 
17.94.020  Definitions. 
17.94.030  Applicability. 
17.94.040  Solar energy system requirements. 
17.94.050  Applications and documents. 
17.94.060  Permit review and inspection requirements. 

17.94.010 Purpose and intent. 
The purpose of this chapter is to provide an expedited, streamlined solar permitting process that complies with 
the Solar Rights Act and AB 2188 (Chapter 521, Statutes 2014, California Government Code Section 65850.5) 
in order to achieve timely and cost-effective installations of small residential rooftop solar energy systems. This 
chapter encourages the use of solar systems by removing unreasonable barriers, minimizing costs to property 
owners and the city and expanding the ability of property owners to install solar energy systems. This chapter 
allows the city to achieve these goals while protecting the public health and safety.  

17.94.020 Definitions. 
As used in this chapter: 

A. “Solar energy system” means either of the following: 

1.  Any solar collector or other solar energy device whose primary purpose is to provide for the 
collection, storage, and distribution of solar energy for space heating, space cooling, electric 
generation, or water heating. 

2.  Any structural design feature of a building, whose primary purpose is to provide for the 
collection, storage, and distribution of solar energy for electricity generation, space heating 
or cooling, or for water heating. 

B.  “Small residential rooftop solar energy system” means all of the following: 

1. A solar energy system that is no larger than ten kilowatts alternating current nameplate rating 
or thirty kilowatts thermal. 

32



City Council Staff Report   Page 4 of 8 
AB 2188, Adopt Ordinance to Expedite Residential Solar Permitting Procedures  
 

 

2. A solar energy system that conforms to all applicable state fire, structural, electrical, and other 
building codes as adopted or amended by the city, and all state and city health and safety 
standards. 

3. A solar energy system that is installed on a single- or two-family dwelling. 

4. A solar panel or module array that does not exceed the maximum legal building height as 
defined by the city. 

C. “Electronic submittal” means the utilization of electronic email or submittal via the Internet. 

D. “Specific, adverse impact” means a significant, quantifiable, direct, and unavoidable impact, based 
on objective, identified, and written public health or safety standards, policies, or conditions as they 
existed on the date the application was deemed complete. 

E. “Reasonable restrictions” on a solar energy system are those restrictions that do not significantly 
increase the cost of the system or significantly decrease its efficiency or specified performance, or 
that allow for an alternative system of comparable cost, efficiency, and energy conservation 
benefits. 

F.  Restrictions that do not significantly increase the cost of the system or decrease its efficiency or 
specified performance” means: 

1. For water heater systems or solar swimming pool heating systems: an amount exceeding ten 
percent of the cost of the system, but in no case more than one thousand dollars, or decreasing 
the efficiency of the solar energy system by an amount exceeding ten percent, as originally 
specified and proposed. 

2. For photovoltaic systems: an amount not to exceed one thousand dollars over the system cost 
as originally specified and proposed, or a decrease in system efficiency of an amount 
exceeding ten percent as originally specified and proposed.  

17.94.030 Applicability. 
A. This chapter applies to the permitting of all small residential rooftop solar energy systems in the 

city. 

B. Small residential rooftop solar energy systems legally established or permitted prior to the effective 
date of the ordinance codified in this chapter are not subject to the requirements of this chapter 
unless physical modifications or alterations are undertaken that materially change the size, type, 
or components of a small rooftop energy system in such a way as to require new permitting. 
Routine operation and maintenance or like-kind replacements shall not require a permit. 

C. A use permit and/or architectural review may be required for properties on the city’s list of historic 
resources as deemed necessary by the community development director.  

17.94.040 Solar energy system requirements. 
A. All solar energy systems shall meet applicable health and safety standards and requirements 

imposed by the state and the city. 

B. Solar energy systems for heating water in single-family residences and for heating water in 
commercial or swimming pool applications shall be certified by an accredited listing agency as 
defined by the California Plumbing and Mechanical Code. 

33



City Council Staff Report   Page 5 of 8 
AB 2188, Adopt Ordinance to Expedite Residential Solar Permitting Procedures  
 

 

C. Solar energy systems for producing electricity shall meet all applicable safety and performance 
standards established by the California Electrical Code, the Institute of Electrical and Electronics 
Engineers, and accredited testing laboratories such as Underwriters Laboratories and, where 
applicable, rules of the Public Utilities Commission regarding safety and reliability.  

17.94.050 Applications and documents. 
A. All documents required for the submission of an expedited solar energy system application shall 

be made available on the city website. 

B. Electronic submittal of the required permit application and documents by email or the Internet shall 
be made available to all small residential rooftop solar energy system permit applicants. 

C. The Planning and Development Services Department shall adopt a standard plan and checklist of 
all requirements with which small residential rooftop solar energy systems shall comply to be 
eligible for expedited review. 

D. The small residential rooftop solar system permit process, standard plan(s), and checklist(s) shall 
substantially conform to recommendations for expedited permitting, including the checklist and 
standard plans contained in the most current version of the California Solar Permitting Guidebook 
adopted by the Governor’s Office of Planning and Research.  

17.94.060 Permit review and inspection requirements. 
A. The Planning Director or his or her designee shall implement an administrative, nondiscretionary 

review process to expedite approval of small residential rooftop solar energy systems. The 
Planning and Development Services Department shall issue a building permit, the issuance of 
which is nondiscretionary, on the same day for over-the-counter applications or within one to three 
business days for electronic applications upon receipt of a complete application that meets the 
requirements of the approved checklist and standard plan. The chief building official may require 
an applicant to apply for an administrative use permit if the official finds, based on substantial 
evidence, that the solar energy system could have a specific, adverse impact upon the public 
health and safety. Such decisions may be appealed to the city Planning Commission. 

B. Review of the application shall be limited to the chief building official’s review of whether the 
application meets local, state, and federal health and safety requirements. 

C. If an administrative use permit is required, the city may deny such application if it makes written 
findings based upon substantive evidence in the record that the proposed installation would have 
a specific, adverse impact upon public health or safety and there is no feasible method to 
satisfactorily mitigate or avoid, as defined, the adverse impact. Such findings shall include the 
basis for the rejection of the potential feasible alternative for preventing the adverse impact. Such 
decisions may be appealed to the city planning commission. 

D. Any condition imposed on an application shall be designed to mitigate the specific, adverse impact 
upon health and safety at the lowest possible cost. 

E.  “A feasible method to satisfactorily mitigate or avoid the specific, adverse impact” includes, but is not 
limited to, any cost-effective method, condition, or mitigation imposed by the city on another similarly 
situated application in a prior successful application for a permit. The city shall use its best efforts to 
ensure that the selected method, condition, or mitigation meets the conditions of subparagraphs (A) 
and (B) of paragraph (1) of subdivision (d) of Section 714 of the Civil Code defining restrictions that do 
not significantly increase the cost of the system or decrease its efficiency or specified performance. 

34



City Council Staff Report   Page 6 of 8 
AB 2188, Adopt Ordinance to Expedite Residential Solar Permitting Procedures  
 

 

F.  If an application is deemed incomplete, a written correction notice detailing all deficiencies in the 
application and any additional information or documentation required to be eligible for expedited 
permit issuance shall be sent to the applicant for resubmission. 

G. Only one inspection shall be required and performed by the building and safety division for small 
residential rooftop solar energy systems eligible for expedited review. 

H. The inspection shall be done in a timely manner and should include consolidated inspections. 

I.  If a small residential rooftop solar energy system fails inspection, a subsequent inspection is 
authorized.  

SECTION 2.  Severance.  If any section, subsection, phrase, or clause of this ordinance is for any reason held 
to be unconstitutional or invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this 
Ordinance. 

SECTION 3.  Effective Date. This ordinance shall become effective on the thirtieth (30th) day following adoption 
by the City Council. Publication of this ordinance or a summary of the same within fifteen days (15) of passage 
pursuant to the laws of the State of California in the Kerman News, a newspaper of general circulation published 
and circulated in the City of Kerman is hereby ordered and directed. 

The foregoing ordinance was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Kerman held 
on the 19th day of August, 2015, and was passed after a duly noticed public hearing at a regular meeting of 
the City Council on the 16th day of September 2015, by the following vote: 
 

AYES:    
NOES:    
ABSTAIN:  
ABSENT:  

 
The foregoing ordinance is hereby approved. 
 

 
ATTEST: 

_________________________ 
        Stephen B. Hill 

Mayor 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
Marci Reyes 
City Clerk 
  

35



City Council Staff Report   Page 7 of 8 
AB 2188, Adopt Ordinance to Expedite Residential Solar Permitting Procedures  
 

 

 
Attachment ‘B’ 

 
 

 
 STREAMLINED SOLAR CHECKLIST 

CITY OF KERMAN 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT, BUILDING DIVISION 

850 S. MADERA AVENUE, KERMAN, CA 93630 
BUSINESS PHONE: (559) 846-6121 

INSPECTION REQUEST- 24 HOUR RECORDER: (559)846-6121 
 
 

This checklist must be completed by the contractor or an authorized agent of 
the contractor in order to determine if the roof top solar project is eligible for 
streamlined solar permitting. 
 
GENERAL REQUIREMENTS: 
System size is 10 kW AC CEC rating or less.     YES  o  NO  o  
The solar array is roof-mounted on one- or two-family dwelling.   YES  o  NO  o 
The solar system is utility interactive and without battery storage.   YES  o  NO  o 
Installation of the system will not require any excavation more than 10 feet from the 
structure the solar panel/module arrays are mounted on.    YES  o  NO  o 
A minimum clear space of three feet is provided on the control side of roof mounted 
HVAC equipment.         YES  o  NO  o 
 
ELECTRICAL REQUIREMENTS: 
No more than four photovoltaic module strings are connected to each  
Maximum Power Point Tracking (MPPT) input where source circuit fusing is  
included in the inverter.         YES  o  NO  o 
No more than two strings per MPPT input where source circuit fusing is 
not included.          YES  o  NO  o 
Fuses (if needed) are rated to the series fuse rating of the PV module.  YES  o  NO  o 
No more than one inverter-integrated DC combiner is utilized per inverter.  YES  o  NO  o 
or central inverter systems: No more than two inverters are utilized.    YES  o  NO  o 
The PV system is connected to the load side of the utility distribution equipment. YES  o  NO  o 
A Solar PV Standard Plan and supporting documentation is completed  
and attached illustrating disconnects, AC/DC, wiring sizing, panel size.   YES  o  NO  o 
 
ROOF REQUIREMENTS: 
The roof has a single roof covering without a reroof overlay.    YES  o  NO  o 
Has the roof structure been verified to be structurally sound, without signs of 
alterations or significant structural deterioration or deflection?   YES  o  NO  o 

 
FIRE SAFETY REQUIREMENTS: 
Access pathways at least three feet in width are provided on hip roofs from the 
eave to the ridge.  Panels shall be located at least 18 inches from a hip or valley 

36



City Council Staff Report   Page 8 of 8 
AB 2188, Adopt Ordinance to Expedite Residential Solar Permitting Procedures  
 

 

if located on both sides of a hip or valley.      YES  o  NO  o 
Access pathways at least three feet in width are provided between multiple arrays. YES  o  NO  o 
To allow for smoke ventilation there is a minimum of three feet between the ridge 
and the panels.         YES  o  NO  o 
There are no conductors within the three foot area between the panels and  
the ridge which are closer than 12 inches of the roof sheathing.   YES  o  NO  o 
The panel fire classification is provided and meets the rating required for 
the structure.         YES  o  NO  o 
The plans include a sheet showing the location and verbiage of the required labels YES  o  NO  o 
 
SOLAR ARRAY REQUIREMENTS: 
Is the distance between the underside of modules and the roof surface at least YES  o  NO  o 
two inches but not greater than 10 inches? 
Is the plane of the modules (panels) parallel to the plane of the roof?    YES  o  NO  o 
The layout of the modules is designed to not overhang any ridges, hips, gable 
ends and eaves.         YES  o  NO  o 
Has the weight of the modules plus support components been verified to weigh no 
more than: 4 psf for photovoltaic arrays or 5 psf for solar thermal arrays?  YES  o  NO  o 
Are the support component manufacturer’s project-specific worksheets and  
tables completed with relevant information identified?    YES  o  NO  o 
 Is a roof plan of the module and anchor layout included in the plans?   YES  o  NO  o 
 
PERMIT ISSUANCE REQUIREMENTS: 
If any items are checked NO, the project is not eligible for streamlined solar permitting and must go 
through the standard application process. 
 
AGREEMENT: 
As the responsible contractor or authorized agent for the project I understand that I am responsible for the 
accuracy of all information provided in this application.  I also understand that revisions to this project will 
result in a revised application and plan review submitted to the building department which will not be 
eligible for expedited solar permit issuance.        
       
 
Contractor/Authorized Agent Name: __________________________________   
 
Contractor/Authorized Agent Signature: _______________________________Date:___________ 
 
 
NOTES and OTHER INFORMATION: 
1. Size of existing service main: 
o 200 amp  o 125 amp  o 100 amp o other please specify ________________ 

2. Will the service main be upgraded and / or replaced? Yes  o No  o 
3. Size of new service main: 
 o 200 amp  o 125 amp  o 100 amp o other please specify __________ 

 

37



    
 
 

  City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

 

   

 

MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM  
Stephen B. Hill Gary Yep  
COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER  
Rhonda Armstrong Nathan Fox Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: SEPTEMBER 16, 2015 

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Jerry Jones, City Engineer 
Subject: Resolution Approving Agreements for Utility Service for 322 S. Goldenrod Avenue and 348 S. 

Goldenrod Avenue 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Council by motion adopt the resolution approving the Agreements for Utility Service for David and Arlene Corneliuz 
at 322 S. Goldenrod Avenue and Reggie and Stella Trevino at 348 S. Goldenrod Avenue. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY   
 
The City has received requests to connect to City utilities from two property owners located on the east side of 
Goldenrod Avenue, north of Kearney Boulevard. David and Arlene Corneliuz own the property located at 322 S. 
Goldenrod Avenue and Reggie and Stella Trevino own the property located at 348 S. Goldenrod Avenue. Both 
properties consist of a single family residence served by a private well and septic system. There have been a 
number of wells that have gone dry in the area and the subject property owners would like to ensure they have 
reliable water service by connecting to City utilities. The property owners have requested to connect to City utilities 
and pay the required connection fees over a 10-year period.  
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES  
 
The City Attorney has made Staff aware that the Fresno County Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCo) 
must approve all new service connections to properties outside of the City Limits. LAFCo’s approval requires the 
preparation and submittal of an application for review and the payment of a $750 application fee.  
 
There are a total of six properties along Goldenrod, between Kearney Boulevard and Stanislaus Avenue that were 
provided with a water and sewer service stub when Goldenrod was improved as part of the development of the 
elementary school. A map showing the location of the properties is included as Attachment ‘B’. At this time, the City 
has received requests to connect to City utilities from the owners of 322 and 348 S. Goldenrod Avenue. The City 
has previously entered into a Utility Service Agreement with Mr. and Mrs. Magana at 432 S. Goldenrod Avenue.  In 
order for the current service requests to be processed, an application must be submitted to LAFCo, including 
payment of the $750 fee. Staff will prepare the application for all six properties and collect each properties fair share 
of the application fee as each property requests connection to City utilities. Each properties fair share of the fee 
would be $125. This will reduce the application fee for the current property owners requesting service and the 
remaining property owners when they request service. 
 
 
 

38



City Council Staff Report   Page 2 of 10 
Corneliuz & Trevino Utility Agreements 
  
DISCUSSION  
 
Due to failure of existing wells in the area, the owners of the subject properties have become concerned about the 
longevity of their own wells. In order to ensure a reliable source of water, the owners have requested to connect to 
City utilities. The subject properties are located on the east side of Goldenrod Avenue, north of Kearney Boulevard, 
just outside of the City Limits, see Attachment ‘B’. The existing improvements to each property include a single 
family residence that is served by a well and septic system. The properties were provided with water and sewer 
services as part of the improvements completed along Goldenrod Avenue for the Goldenrod Elementary School.  
 
The Kerman Municipal Code (KMC) Section 13.04.100 allows for properties located outside of City Limits to connect 
to City utilities provided the property owners enter into a written agreement with the City for all utility services. 
Furthermore, KMC Section 13.08 requires the payment of fees for connection, either in full or on an installment 
basis. The owners will be required to pay the applicable development impact fees for connection to City utilities. The 
development impact fees were calculated using the length of property frontage and one residential unit. The total 
fees are $9,208. The owners have requested that the fees be collected on a monthly basis over a 10-year period. 
This alleviates the up-front fiscal impact to the property owner. Any future development on the property will be 
subject to additional impact fees. In addition to the benefit provided to the property owner, the City benefits from the 
elimination of an unregulated groundwater supply source adjacent to the City’s boundaries. 
 
Connection to the City’s water system is desired immediately. However, connection to the City’s sewer system is not 
urgent and the property owners may be allowed 2 years from the date of the Utility Service Agreement to connect to 
the sewer system. Impact fee payments for both water and sewer will begin with the first monthly billing for water 
service.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
 
The water service will be metered and the owners will be required to pay monthly water and sewer charges based 
on current rates. The applicable development impact fees will be collected over a 10-year period. The total impact 
fees to be collected are $9,208, or $76.73 per month for the 10-year term. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING  
 
Not Required. 
 
Attachments: 
 

A. Resolution w/Exhibit 
B. Utility Service Map 

 
 
  

39



City Council Staff Report   Page 3 of 10 
Corneliuz & Trevino Utility Agreements 
  

Attachment ‘A’ 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-__ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN APPROVING AGREEMENTS 
FOR UTILITY SERVICE FOR DAVID AND ARLENE CORNELIUZ AT 322 S. GOLDENROD AVENUE AND  

REGGIE AND STELLA TREVINO AT 348 S. GOLDENROD AVENUE 
 

WHEREAS, David and Arlene Corneliuz are the owners of real property located at 322 S. Goldenrod 
Avenue, in the County of Fresno; and 

WHEREAS, Reggie and Stella Trevino are the owners of real property located at 348 S. Goldenrod 
Avenue, in the County of Fresno; and 

WHEREAS, the Corneliuz and Trevino properties each contains a single family residence, water well 
and septic system; and 

WHEREAS, sewer and water mains currently exist across the frontage of the subject property in 
Goldenrod Avenue and water and sewer services have been previously installed for the Corneliuz and 
Trevino properties; and  

WHEREAS, the amount of the City of Kerman Development Impact Fees for the Corneliuz property 
to connect to the sewer and water system are $9,208; and 

WHEREAS, the amount of the City of Kerman Development Impact Fees for the Trevino property to 
connect to the sewer and water system are $9,208; and 

WHEREAS, David and Arlene Corneliuz and Reggie and Stella Trevino have each made application 
to the City of Kerman for water and sewer service; and  

WHEREAS, Section 13.08 of the Kerman Municipal Code requires payment of connection charges, 
and Section 13.04.100 of the Kerman Municipal Code requires an Agreement for Utility Service between the 
property owner and the City before utility service can be provided.  

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN DOES RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Agreement for Utility Service for David and Arlene Corneliuz at 322 S. Goldenrod Avenue is 
hereby approved. 

40



City Council Staff Report   Page 4 of 10 
Corneliuz & Trevino Utility Agreements 
  

2. The Agreement for Utility Service for Reggie and Stella Trevino at 348 S. Goldenrod Avenue is 
hereby approved. 

3. The City Manager is authorized to sign the City’s form of Agreement for Utility Service, as shown 
in Exhibit 1, on behalf of the City. 

The foregoing resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Kerman held 
on the 16th day of September, 2015, and passed at said meeting by the following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 
 

The foregoing resolution is hereby approved. 
 
 
 
 ___________________________ 
         Stephen B. Hill  

 Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________ 
Marci Reyes 
City Clerk 

  

41



City Council Staff Report   Page 5 of 10 
Corneliuz & Trevino Utility Agreements 
  

Exhibit 1 
 

 

42



City Council Staff Report   Page 6 of 10 
Corneliuz & Trevino Utility Agreements 
  

43



City Council Staff Report   Page 7 of 10 
Corneliuz & Trevino Utility Agreements 
  

44



City Council Staff Report   Page 8 of 10 
Corneliuz & Trevino Utility Agreements 
  

45



City Council Staff Report   Page 9 of 10 
Corneliuz & Trevino Utility Agreements 
  

 

46



City Council Staff Report   Page 10 of 10 
Corneliuz & Trevino Utility Agreements 
  

Attachment ‘B’ 

 

47



    
 
 

  City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

 

   

 

 MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM  
 Stephen B. Hill Gary Yep  
 COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER  
 Rhonda Armstrong Nathan Fox Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: SEPTEMBER 16, 2015 

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Jerry Jones, City Engineer 
Subject: Addition of the Reconstruction of Manor Drive to the California Avenue Reconstruction Project 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Council by motion adopt resolution approving a change order to add the reconstruction of Manor Drive to the scope 
of the California Avenue Reconstruction Project and authorize the Public Works Director to sign the change order. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
Manor Drive between California Avenue and B Street is designated as “Very Poor” in the City’s Pavement 
Management System and the reconstruction of the existing pavement has been included in the City’s Five-Year 
Capital Improvement Plan in fiscal year 2017/2018. Due to competitive unit costs for paving materials bid by the 
Contractor for the California Avenue Reconstruction Project, the addition of Manor Drive to the current project scope 
will likely result in a cost-savings versus completion of the work in 2017/2018. The additional work has been 
discussed with the Contractor and they are willing to proceed with the work at the unit costs they bid. 
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES  
 
None. 
 
DISCUSSION  
 
The reconstruction of California Avenue between Del Norte Avenue and Madera Avenue was awarded to Don Berry 
Construction on August 5, 2015. Construction is scheduled to begin on September 14, 2015. Public Works Staff 
recently have discussed the addition of the reconstruction of Manor Drive between California Avenue and B Street to 
the project. A Vicinity Map is included as Attachment ‘B’ for location reference. The subject portion of Manor Drive is 
very deteriorated and Public Works Staff have to periodically patch potholes in the pavement. In addition, the City’s 
Pavement Management System has assigned a pavement condition index in the “Very Poor” range for this portion 
of Manor Drive. Reconstruction of the street is included in the City’s Five-Year Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) for 
fiscal year 2017/2018. 
 
The overall bid for the California Avenue Reconstruction Project was higher than anticipated. However, the unit 
costs for paving materials were very competitive. The addition of the reconstruction of Manor Drive has been 
discussed with the Contractor and they are willing to perform the work at the same unit costs as they bid. Due to the 
competitive nature of the paving material costs, the completion of the reconstruction at this time will likely provide a 
cost-savings versus completion in 2017/2018, as planned.  
 
 

48



City Council Staff Report    Page 2 of 5 
Manor Drive Reconstruction 
  
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
 
The estimated cost of the reconstruction of Manor Drive is $26,000, which equates to 3.8 percent of the contract 
amount for the California Avenue Reconstruction Project. Funding for Manor Drive is included in the City’s CIP in 
fiscal year 2017/2018. The budgeted amounts for the 2016/2017 Street Sealing Project and 2017/2018 Street 
Reconstruction Project, which included Manor Drive, can be adjusted during the development of next year’s budget 
to account for the completion of the work in the current fiscal year.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING  
 
Not Required. 
 
Attachments: 
 

A. Resolution 
B. Vicinity Map 

 
 
  

49



City Council Staff Report    Page 3 of 5 
Manor Drive Reconstruction 
  

Attachment ‘A’ 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-__ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN 
APPROVING A CHANGE ORDER TO ADD THE RECONSTRUCTION OF MANOR DRIVE 

TO THE CALIFORNIA AVENUE RECONSTRUCTION PROJECT 
 

WHEREAS, the contract for the California Avenue Reconstruction Project was awarded to Don Berry 
Construction, Inc. on August 5, 2015 in the amount of $678,679.24; and 

WHEREAS, the California Avenue Reconstruction Project consists of the reconstruction of California 
Avenue between Del Norte Avenue and Madera Avenue; and 

WHEREAS, Manor Drive between California Avenue and B Street is in “Very Poor” condition according 
to the City’s Pavement Management System; and 

WHEREAS, the reconstruction of Manor Drive between California Avenue and B Street is included in 
the City’s Five-Year Capital Improvement Plan for fiscal year 2017/2018; and  

WHEREAS, the unit costs for paving materials included in the bid for the California Avenue 
Reconstruction Project and the proximity of the subject portion of Manor Drive to the California Avenue 
Reconstruction Project are anticipated to result in a lower cost for the reconstruction of the subject portion of 
Manor Drive versus completion in fiscal year 2017/2018; and 

WHEREAS, the estimated cost for the reconstruction of Manor Drive between California Avenue and B 
Street is $26,000, which equates to 3.8 percent of the contract amount for the California Avenue Reconstruction 
Project.  

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN DOES RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The change order adding the reconstruction of Manor Drive to the California Avenue Reconstruction 
Project is hereby approved. 

2. The Public Works Director is authorized to sign the change order form. 

 

50



City Council Staff Report    Page 4 of 5 
Manor Drive Reconstruction 
  
 

The foregoing resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Kerman held on 
the 16th day of September, 2015, and passed at said meeting by the following vote: 

 
AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 
 

The foregoing resolution is hereby approved. 
 
 
              
        Stephen B. Hill  

Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Marci Reyes 
City Clerk 

  

51



City Council Staff Report    Page 5 of 5 
Manor Drive Reconstruction 
  

Attachment ‘B’

 

52


	Agenda
	Mid-Valley Disposal 1st and 2nd Quarter Recycling Updates
	Mid Valley Newsletter

	Minutes
	September 2, 2015

	Payroll
	Payroll/Overtime Report

	Warrants
	Accounts Payable

	Water Conservation Leak Notification Report
	Leak Notification Report

	Monthly Investment Report Ending August 31, 2015
	Investment Reports

	Public Hearing Ordinance Adding Section 17.94 to Title 17 of the Kerman Municipal Code To Comply with AB 2188 Regarding Expedited Permit Processing For Small Residential Roof Top Solar Systems
	Staff Report - Ordinance Rooftop Solar

	Resolution Approving Agreements for Utility Service for 322 S. Goldenrod Avenue and 348 S. Goldenrod Avenue
	Staff Report - Corneliuz & Trevino

	Addition of the Reconstruction of Manor Drive to the California Avenue Reconstruction Project
	Staff Report - Manor Drive




